
Town of Montreat 
Board of Commissioners 

Town Council Agenda Meeting 
November 2, 2017 – 7:00 p.m. 

Moore Center – Thompson Brown Meeting Room 
 
 

1 

I. Call to Order  

• Pledge of Allegiance 
• Moment of Silence

II. Agenda Adoption   

III. Presentations and Reports 

• Audit Presentation – Materials Pending 

• Ruling on Motion to Defer (report only)  

IV. Mayor’s Communications 
 

V. Consent Agenda 

A.  Meeting Minutes Adoption 

• September 7, 2017, Town Council Agenda Meeting Minutes 
• September 14, 2017, Town Council Public Forum Minutes 
• September 14, 2017, Town Council Meeting Minutes 
• October 2, 2017, Town Council Special Meeting Minutes 
• October 5, 2017, Town Council Agenda Meeting Minutes 
• October 12, 2017 Town Council Public Forum Minutes 
• October 12, 2017, Town Council Meeting Minutes 

 
All items on the Consent Agenda are considered routine, to be enacted by one motion with the 
adoption of the agenda and without discussion.  If a member of the governing body requests 
discussion of an item, it will be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered separately.
 
VI. Town Administrator’s Communications 

• Consent Agenda Review  
• Other Items 

 
VII. Administrative Reports 

• Police Chief  
• Public Works Director 
• Finance Officer   

 

VIII. Public Comment – Agenda Items 

Packet Page 1



    Montreat Board of Commissioners 
Town Council Agenda Meeting 

   November 2, 2017 
 
 

2 

Public comments will be heard during this period for only those items listed on the meeting 
agenda

IX. Old Business 

.   

A. Montreat as a welcoming community 

• Suggested Motion:  To move to add the phrase “strive to be a welcoming 
community" to the Board of Commissioners Mission Statement. 

“To strive to be a welcoming community, to maintain and improve the quality of 
life, preserve the natural beauty and promote responsible growth while maintaining 
our community image, heritage and traditions.” 

X. New Business 

A. Discussion of Montreat Physical Addressing As it Pertains to Services 
 

B. Land of Sky Contract  
• Suggestion Motion:  Motion Pending 

 
C. Liquid Engineering:  In-Service Cleaning and Inspection Contract 

• Suggested Motion:  Move to approve the Liquid Engineering In-Service Cleaning 
and Inspection Contract.   
 

D.  Approval of electronic notice of bidding 
• Suggested Motion:  Move to approve electronic notice of bidding opportunities 

as authorized by G.S. 143-129 
 

I.  Public Comment – Other Topics 

Public comments will be heard during this period for other public business items or topics not 
listed on the meeting agenda

II. Commissioner Communications 

.  

III. Meeting Dates 
  
 

November 9, 2017, 7:00 p.m. November Town Council Meeting: 
Public Forum begins at 6:30 p.m. 

Walkup Building 

Packet Page 2



    Montreat Board of Commissioners 
Town Council Agenda Meeting 

   November 2, 2017 
 
 

3 

 

November 28, 2017, 9:30 a.m. Montreat Tree Board: 
Town Services Building 

November 30, 2017, 7:00 p.m. Planning & Zoning: 
 

 
 

December 6, 2017, 9:00 a.m. Montreat Landcare: 
Allen Building 

Swannanoa Room 
 

December 7, 2017, 7:00 a.m. December Town Council Agenda Meeting: 
Walkup Building 

December 14, 2017, 7:00 p.m. December Town Council Meeting: 
Public Forum begins at 6:30 p.m. 

Walkup Building 
 

 
  

IV. Closed Session (on 10/02/17):   To enter into Closed Session in accordance with 
North Carolina General Statute §143-318.11(5) to discuss the proposed 
acquisition of real property identified as (PIN # 0710-53-9360), located on 
Montreat Road, for potential Montreat Town Hall. 
 

V. Adjournment 
 

Packet Page 3



 

 

October 24, 2017 

To: Alex Carmichael, Town Administrator   From: Susan Taylor Rash 

 Town of Montreat 

 

Re: Substantive and Procedural Motions 

Montreat Board of Commissioners’ Rules of Procedure 

 

 

The Rules of Procedure state that the Board shall proceed by motion (Rule 11) and several Rules 

address the use of substantive and procedural motions.  

 

Rule 4. Agenda  

 

Rule 4.I.E. addresses the Agenda Meeting, at which the Board can “ask questions and thoroughly 

explore the proposals that must be voted on at the regular meeting.”  Rule 4 provides that the first 

item of business at the Agenda Meeting is the discussion and adoption of the agenda.  By a majority 

vote, the Board can add items to or subtract items from the proposed agenda for a regular meeting. 

 

Rule 18. Procedural Motions  

 

Rule 18 sets out the procedural motions in order of priority. Several procedural motions address 

postponing, deferring, reviving or renewing substantive motions. Unless a procedural rule requires 

otherwise, a motion made under Rule 18 can be adopted by a majority vote of the Board. The 

procedural motions listed below allow the Board to do something with a substantive motion that 

is under consideration. 

 

Motion 9.  To Defer Consideration.  When a substantive motion has been made, the Board 

can defer consideration of that motion to an unspecified time.  If the Board wishes to consider 

the deferred motion, it can adopt a motion to revive consideration of the deferred motion 

(Motion 14).  If no motion to revive consideration is adopted within 100 days, the deferred 

substantive motion expires. 

 

Motion 11.  To Postpone to a Certain Time or Day.  A substantive motion can be postponed 

to a specified time or day and the Board must wait until that time to consider the motion. 

 

Motion 14.  To Revive Consideration.  When a substantive motion has been deferred 

(Motion 9), the Board can adopt a motion to revive consideration of it.  If the motion to revive 

is not made within 100 days, the deferred substantive motion expires. 

 

Packet Page 4



Motion 15.  To Reconsider.  A Commissioner who voted with the prevailing side can move 

to reconsider a matter at the meeting during which the original vote was taken. 

 

Motion 17.  To Prevent Reconsideration for Six Months.  Immediately following the defeat 

of a substantive motion (and at no other time), a Commissioner can move to prevent 

reconsideration of the substantive motion for six months.  A ⅔ vote is required. 

 

Under Rule 19 (Renewal of a Motion), a motion that has been defeated can be renewed at a 

subsequent meeting unless a motion to prevent reconsideration has been adopted. 

 

The use of the Rule 18 procedural motions can be confusing and the effect of a procedural motion 

often depends on the underlying substantive motion under consideration. An example of the 

uncertain effect of a procedural motion occurred at the Agenda Meeting on September 7, 2017.  A 

Commissioner moved to adopt the agenda as presented and another Commissioner seconded the 

motion.  Under Rule 4, the discussion and adoption of the agenda was the appropriate first item of 

business. The Board could add items to or subtract items from the proposed agenda by a majority 

vote.  

 

The motion under consideration was to adopt the agenda as presented. A motion was then made to 

defer agenda item “A” under New Business to the next Board retreat but no later than March 15, 

2018. The substantive motion listed under agenda item “A” was not yet under consideration. The 

Board could certainly subtract this item from the agenda by a majority vote, but in order to use the 

procedural motions to defer (Motion 9. To Defer Consideration) or to postpone consideration 

(Motion 11. To Postpone to a Certain Time or Date) of item “A” under New Business would 

require that the item “A” substantive motion be under consideration. 

 

Under Rule 4, the purpose of the Agenda Meeting is to give the Board the opportunity to ask 

questions about the proposals to be voted on at the regular meeting and to adopt the agenda. 

Usually, substantive motions for the items on the approved agenda are made at the regular meeting.  

Once the substantive motion has been made, a Motion to Defer Consideration or a Motion to 

Postpone to a Certain Time or Date can be made. 

 

Use of the Rule 18 procedural motions is complicated and the Board’s practice of presenting 

resolutions and motions in written form helps by giving the Commissioners and Town staff the 

opportunity to review the Rules of Procedure and other materials before the motion is made. 

 

 

 

 

Packet Page 5



Town of Montreat 
Board of Commissioners 

Town Council Agenda Meeting 
September 7, 2017 

Walkup Building 
 

Book 16; Page 

 
Board members present
    Mayor Pro Tem Kitty Fouche 

: Mayor Tim Helms 

Commissioner Bill Gilliland 
Commissioner Kent Otto 
Commissioner Mary Standaert 
Commissioner Ann Vinson 
 

Board members absent:
 

 None     

Town staff present
Angie Murphy, Town Clerk 

:  Alex Carmichael, Town Administrator 

Justyn Whitson, Police Officer 
     
Approximately 15 members of the public were also present.  Mayor Helms called the meeting to 
order at 7:03 p.m., led the group in reciting the Pledge of Allegiance, and held a moment of silence 
asking for those in attendance to remember those affected by the recent hurricanes 
.   

 
Agenda Approval 

Commissioner Vinson moved to adopt the agenda as presented.  Commissioner Gilliland 
seconded.  Mayor Pro Tem Fouche moved to defer agenda item “A”,  which is to add the word 
“welcome” or “welcoming” to the Mission Statement,

 

 under new business to the next retreat but 
no later than the March 15, 2018 meeting for discussion and possible action.  Mayor Pro Tem 
Fouche felt that with new members entering the Council that they should have a say in the mission 
statement verbiage.  Commissioner Gilliland seconded Mayor Pro Tem Fouche’s motion.  
Commissioner Standaert stated that they were a board with multiple months to serve and felt it 
should be addressed now rather than later.  The motion carried 3/2 with Commissioners Standaert 
and Vinson voting in opposition to the motion.  Commissioner Standaert asked if the item could be 
brought up again if it was deferred.  Mayor Helms stated that it would remain off the agenda for 
100 days.  Town Administrator Carmichael explained there were different nuances between 
“tabling an item” versus “deferring an item” and could not give an answer off the top of his head.  
Commissioner Standaert asked for further investigation into this matter as well as the voting 
requirements.  Commissioner Vinson noticed a typographical error under the Public Hearing item 
in which “industrial” needed to be changed to “institutional” as Montreat does not have any 
industrial zoning.  Commissioner Gilliland moved to adopt the agenda as amended.  Commissioner 
Otto seconded.  The motion carried 4/1 with Commissioner Standaert voting in opposition to the 
motion.     

 
 

Packet Page 6



Montreat Board of Commissioners 
Town Council Agenda Meeting Minutes 

September 7, 2017 
 

 

Book 16; Page 

 

Mr. Carmichael stated that Commissioner Standaert had asked for some additional documents 
related to the public notice requirements.  Public notices were publicly displayed in the Town 
Services Building and the United States Postal Office.  Notices were mailed to the Black Mountain 
News and to property owners as per our Zoning Ordinance.  Mr. Carmichael provided a list of all 
property owners and adjacent property owners along with the letter and notice that were mailed 
to them to each Commissioner.  These items will be added to next week’s agenda packet.   

Public Hearing:  Proposed Rezoning of Eastern Side of Florida Terrace From 
Institutional/Residential (I/R) to Residential Low Density (R1) Followed by Possible 

Action 

 
  

 
Mayor’s Communications 

Mayor Helms stated that he wanted Mr. Carmichael to bring everyone up-to-date with the 
preparations the Town Employees are making for Hurricane Irma.   Mr. Carmichael stated that the 
Public Work Crews had spent the day preparing culverts and stormwater systems for the 
impending storm.  Public Work Crews replaced radio batteries at the well and tank sites.  They 
borrowed a portable generator from the Town of Black Mountain for the wells.   The Crews are 
working with Mountain Retreat Association to monitor Lake Susan as well as the dam.  Montreat 
Police Department is working with the Buncombe County Emergency Manager’s Office.  Both 
Police and Public Works are identifying potential staging areas and evacuation routes.  
Administrative Staff are preparing for mobile emergency notification capabilities.  Mayor Helms 
urged property owners to secure loose items around their homes. 
   

 
Consent Agenda Review 

The proposed Consent Agenda will include the following items: 
• August 3, 2017, Town Council Agenda Meeting Minutes 
• August 10, 2017, Town Council  Public Forum Minutes 
• August 10, 2017, Town Council Meeting Minutes 

 

 
Town Administrator’s Communications 

• Mr. Carmichael has updated the reevaluation of the categorical exclusion document for the 
Texas Road Bridge.   This document has since been sent to our engineering firm, KCI, who has 
to sign off on it and then it will be forwarded to the Municipal Bridge Program by September 
15th

• The Police Department was audited by the North Carolina Department of Justice Criminal 
Standards Division and received a positive response.   

. 

• The Water Department had their wells and tanks inspected this week by the regional inspector 
and received a verbal confirmation of passing with flying colors.    

Packet Page 7



Montreat Board of Commissioners 
Town Council Agenda Meeting Minutes 

September 7, 2017 
 

 

Book 16; Page 

 

 
Administrative Reports 

The Board will hear administrative reports as written with the ability to ask questions from the 
Police Chief, Public Works Director, Finance Officer and Building Inspector/Code Administrator 
during next week’s Town Council Meeting. 
 

Public Comments
 

  

Mayor Helms reiterated that this Public Comment period was intended for remarks pertaining to 
items listed on the meeting agenda, including staff reports and communications. 
 
Mr. Wade Burns of 232 North Carolina Terrace mentioned the detailed series of options for the 
Building Inspector/Zoning Administrator that Mr. Carmichael had outlined in the evening’s packet.  
Mr. Burns encouraged Council to review the ordinances along with purpose and intent before 
deciding on the zoning administrator position. 
 

 
Old Business 

There was no Old Business to discuss. 

 
New Business 

A. Zoning Official Position Review: 

   

  Mayor Helms stated that Mr. Carmichael would review the 
Zoning Official Position for Council next week.  Mayor Pro Tem Fouche asked about the backlog 
of zoning requests and wanted to know what we as a Town were doing to accommodate 
people.   Mr. Carmichael stated that he has 2-3 conversations about zoning issues a day.  The 
zoning permits are backing up.  Our building permits are being handled temporarily at a rate of 
$25 per inspection and $25 per permit issued which is extremely inexpensive compared to 
other rates Mr. Carmichael has investigated.  All zoning permits have to be signed off on by a 
zoning officer appointed by the Commission.  Mayor Pro Tem Fouche asked if there was a 
certification process for the zoning administrator.  Mr. Carmichael stated that the job requires 
appointment by the Council and an oath of office.  Mayor Pro Tem Fouche stated she 
appreciated the detailed descriptions of the zoning official position options that Mr. Carmichael 
provided in the packet.   

 
Public Comments-Other Topics 

Mayor Helms reiterated that the Public Comment period were for remarks pertaining to public 
business items not listed on the meeting agenda, including any reports or communications from 
other community entities. 
 

Packet Page 8



Montreat Board of Commissioners 
Town Council Agenda Meeting Minutes 

September 7, 2017 
 

 

Book 16; Page 

Mr. Wade Burns of 232 North Carolina Terrace asked if there was a training and certification 
process required by the State for the zoning administrator.  Mr. Carmichael stated that there was a 
training and certification class offered by the UNC School of Government but it is his belief that it 
is not a requirement of the zoning officer.  Mr. Burns suggested getting a group of citizens to be 
sworn in to look at pending applications.  Mr. Carmichael stated that there will be a lag time 
between when a decision is made about what model the Council wants to use for the zoning 
official position and when that position will be filled.  Mr. Carmichael has spoken with an individual 
from Saluda, South Carolina who has offered to contract out our zoning to fill in the gaps until our 
position is filled.   
 
Mr. Bill Scheu of 146 Eastminster Terrace asked if it would be possible to designate the Town 
Administrator as Zoning Official on a temporary basis since there are no requirements for the 
position.  Mayor Helms stated that he felt like that should be a private conversation that he has 
with Mr. Carmichael.   
 
Mr. Mike Sonnenberg of 125 Virginia Road felt that this conversation was important because we 
need to flesh out a backup plan in case the future zoning administrator is sick or unavailable.  
Commissioner Standaert stated that we have always had a good working relationship with the 
Town of Black Mountain when it comes to filling in for vacations or absences.   
 

 
Commissioner Communications 

There were no Commissioner Communications at this time.  
 

 
Upcoming Meeting Dates 

Mayor Helms reviewed the following list of upcoming meeting dates and deadlines:  
 

September 14, 2017, 7:00 p.m. September Town Council Meeting: 
Public Forum begins at 6:30 p.m. 

Walkup Building 
 

September 19, 2017, 9:30 a.m. Montreat Tree Board: 
Town Services Building 

 
September 28, 2017, 7:00 p.m. Board of Adjustment: 

Walkup Building 
 

October 4, 2017, 9:00 a.m. Montreat Landcare: 
Allen Building 

Swannanoa Room 
 

Packet Page 9



Montreat Board of Commissioners 
Town Council Agenda Meeting Minutes 

September 7, 2017 
 

 

Book 16; Page 

October 5, 2017, 7:00 p.m. October Town Council Agenda Meeting: 
 

October 12, 2017, 7:00 p.m. October Town Council Meeting: 
Public Forum begins at 6:30 p.m. 

Walkup Building 
  

 

 
Closed Session 

Commissioner Vinson moved to enter in Closed Session in accordance with North Carolina General 
Statute 143-318.11(6) for discussion of a personnel matter.  Commissioner Gilliland seconded and 
the motion carried 5/0. 
 
Upon a motion by Commissioner Gilliland and a second by Commissioner Vinson with the motion 
carrying 5/0, the Board returned to Open Session.  Commissioner Gilliland moved to appoint Barry 
Creasman to the position of Interim Public Works Director effective immediately, and to have Mr. 
Creasman assume the full duties and responsibilities of Public Works Director and remain at his 
current pay grade of 15 until such time as he completes the “Effective Supervisory Management 
Course” on, or by, September 30, 2018, at such time he will be assigned a pay grade of 17 and the 
title of Public Works Director for the Town of Montreat; the interim period will satisfy the one year 
probationary period specified by the Montreat Personnel Policy after which he will be eligible for a 
5% raise above the starting pay for a pay grade of 17.   Commissioner Vinson seconded the motion 
and the motion carried 5/0.  Mr. Creasman happily accepted and signed the offer of position 
document.   
 
There will be another closed session at next week’s meeting. 

 

 
Adjournment 

There being no further business, Commissioner Gilliland moved to adjourn the Town Council 
Agenda Meeting.  Commissioner Vinson seconded and the motion carried 5/0.  The meeting was 
adjourned at 7:41 p.m.  
 
 
   

Tim Helms, Mayor  Angela Murphy, Town Clerk 

  

Packet Page 10



 Town of Montreat 
Board of Commissioners 

Town Council Public Forum  
September 14, 2017 

Walkup Building 
  

 

Book 16; Page  

Board members present
    Mayor Pro Tem Kitty Fouche 

: Mayor Tim Helms 

    Commissioner Bill Gilliland 
Commissioner Kent Otto 
Commissioner Mary Standaert (arrived at 6:37 p.m.) 
Commissioner Ann Vinson (arrived at 6:34 p.m.) 
 

Board members absent:
 

 None 

Town staff present
    Barry Creasman, Interim Public Works Director 

:  Angie Murphy, Town Clerk 

    Dave Arrant, Chief of Police 
    Steve Stackhouse, Finance Officer 
 

 
Call to Order 

Approximately 36 people were in attendance.  Mayor Helms called the meeting to order at 6:33 
p.m. and led the group in a moment of silence.   
 

 
Agenda Approval 

Commissioner Gilliland moved to adopt the agenda as presented.  Commissioner Otto seconded 
and the motion carried 3/0. 
 

 
Public Forum 

Mr. Richard Dubose, speaking on behalf of Mountain Retreat Association, stated that he was 
generally opposed to the rezoning of the eastern side of Florida Terrace because once zoning goes 
to residential only it rarely is rezoned back to institutional.  The MRA does respect the opinions of 
those living in the neighborhood.  Mr. Dubose stated that the MRA has no plans to enter into 
further development on Florida Terrace but they do have some concerns for their Sylvan Heights 
property.  They would prefer that special provisions be made to allow Sylvan Heights’ zoning to 
remain as is.   
 
Mrs. Grace Nichols of 527 Suwannee Drive asked the Board to summarize the pros and cons of 
rezoning.  Commissioner Otto felt that rezoning fits that section of Town since it currently is 
residential homes.  Commissioner Otto also would like to see the addition of one or two new 
homes built to increase Montreat’s tax base.  Commissioner Standaert questioned how much tax 
revenue was anticipated off of only one or two newly built houses.  Commissioner Otto stated that 
he thought the tax revenues would be between $5,000 and $7,000 based on the size and tax value 

Packet Page 11



Montreat Board of Commissioners 
Public Forum Minutes 

 September 14, 2017 
 

 

Book 16; Page  

of the homes.  Commissioner Standaert stated that the tax value off of two $400,000 homes 
would be approximately $1,700 each in taxable revenue to the Town of Montreat.  Mayor Pro Tem 
Fouche felt that the Board took into account the wishes of the neighbors on Florida Terrace.  
Commissioner Standaert pointed out that the petition received was not 100% of the residents.  
Commissioner Vinson wanted to make it clear that if two residential homes were built at this time 
that it would increase the tax base so she still has trouble understanding why the zoning needs to 
change.  Mrs. Nichols asked what the long term consequences would be for rezoning.  Mayor 
Helms stated that a lodge could not be built on Florida Terrace.  Commissioner Vinson felt that the 
rezoning could limit the number of people who could possibly buy the property.  Commissioner 
Standaert felt that the responsibility of elected officials is looking towards the future not just in the 
present.   
 
Mr. Eric Nichols of 527 Suwannee Drive stated that the current zoning would not prevent anyone 
from building on the property. 
 
Mr. Wade Burns of 232 North Carolina Terrace stated that he regrets that Public Work Crews are 
not in attendance at this meeting because he wants to give them some high regard.  Mr. Burns 
summarized the damages on North Carolina Terrace from Hurricane Irma.  Mr. Burns stated that 
Public Work Crews worked through the night clearing 17 trees across the roadways and they did it 
at great risk to themselves.  Mr. Burns stated that the Tree Board is working towards an idea of a 
tree plan to remove dead and dying trees.  Mr. Burns is adamantly in favor of this tree plan for the 
safety of everyone.  Commissioner Vinson stated that the federal/state grant received by the Tree 
Board will pay for the Town to begin the tree inventory which will start at the Gate and proceed up 
to Lake Susan.  Commissioner Vinson also stated that monies in this year’s budget have also 
increased for the care of trees.  There is also money in the budget for a bucket truck for the Town.   
 
Mr. Mike Sonnenberg of 125 Virginia Road asked if there was a possibility of partnering with the 
Town of Black Mountain with regards to the bucket truck.  Commissioner Vinson stated that there 
was enough money in the budget for Montreat to purchase a used bucket truck.     
 

 
Adjournment 

There being no further discussion, Commissioner Vinson moved to adjourn the Public Forum 
Meeting.  Commissioner Gilliland seconded and the motion carried 5/0.  The meeting was 
adjourned at 6:57 p.m. 
 
 
 
__________________________________  ______________________________________ 
  Tim Helms, Mayor     Angie Murphy, Town Clerk 
 

 

Packet Page 12



Montreat Board of Commissioners 
Public Forum Minutes 

 September 14, 2017 
 

 

Book 16; Page  

 

Packet Page 13



Town of Montreat 
Board of Commissioners 

Town Council Meeting 
September 14, 2017 

Walkup Building 
 

Book 16; Page 

 
Board members present

Mayor Pro Tem Kitty Fouche 
: Mayor Tim Helms 

Commissioner Bill Gilliland 
Commissioner Kent Otto 
Commissioner Mary Standaert 
Commissioner Ann Vinson 
 

Board members absent:
     

 None 

 
Town staff present

Stefan Stackhouse, Finance Officer 
:  Dave Arrant, Police Captain/Interim Police Chief 

Barry Creasman, Senior Water Operator 
Angie Murphy, Town Clerk 

    Susan Taylor Rash, Town Attorney 
 
Approximately 36 members of the public were also present.  Mayor Helms called the meeting to 
order at 7:10 p.m., led the group in reciting the Pledge of Allegiance, and held a moment of silence 
with special remembrance to those in Florida, Texas and Georgia who had been affected by the 
recent hurricanes. 

 
Agenda Approval 

Commissioner Gilliland moved to adopt the agenda as presented.  Commissioner Vinson seconded 
and the motion carried 5/0. 
 

 

Public Hearing:  Proposed Rezoning of Eastern Side of Florida Terrace From 
Institutional/Residential (I/R) to Residential Low Density (R1) Followed by Possible 

Action 

Commissioner Otto stated that he spent time with Montreat College and MRA discussing their 
short term and long term goals with regards to the Florida Terrace Property.  Commissioner Otto’s 
main premise for proposing the rezoning of the eastern side of Florida Terrace is primarily for the 
increase in tax revenue base.  Commission Otto felt that a lot of individuals in Town are interested 
in rezoning and he has spoken to several realtors who felt the rezoning would affect salability 
more positively.   
 
Eric Nichols of 527 Suwannee Drive, stated that he worries we are forgetting what are mission is as 
a community.  Mr. Nichols felt that the proposed rezoning would restrict potential building for 
institutions/organizations.  Mr. Nichols stated that the Board should let the market be the market 
and see what happens.   

Packet Page 14



Montreat Board of Commissioners 
Town Council Meeting Minutes 

September 14, 2017 
 

 

Book 16; Page 

Mr. Francis Burriss of Florida Terrace and Arkansas Trail, read a statement that represented what 
all the people on the block and the people who signed the petition felt with regards to the 
proposed rezoning.  Mr. Burriss felt that the change will allow the tract to be developed with one 
to two houses which will bring much needed long term revenue to the Town of Montreat.  This 
action would prevent this parcel from being a source of discord and division in the neighborhood 
today and in the future.   
 
Commissioner Vinson stated that the current zoning does not limit who can purchase and develop 
the property and Montreat would still have the potential to incur increased tax revenue.  
Commissioner Vinson felt that thinking about the future is just as important as the current 
situations.  She does not understand the need for rezoning at this time.    
 
Commissioner Standaert questioned how many people lived on Florida Terrace full time.  She 
stated that it does not currently embellish the character of a full time residential neighborhood.   
 
Mayor Pro Tem Fouche would like to see Florida Terrace remain a residential neighborhood 
especially after recent years. 
 
Commissioner Standaert stated that the tax consequences of making the zoning changes are really 
quite small.  She was also concerned about the precedence that this may or may not set for future 
zoning situations.   
 
Commissioner Otto moved to rezone the Eastern Side of Florida Terrace from 
Institutional/Residential (I/R) to Residential Low Density (R1) excluding the property known as 
Sylvan Heights PIN # 0720-15-4916.  Mayor Pro Tem Fouche seconded and the motion carried 3/2 
with Commissioner Standaert and Vinson voting against the motion.  Commissioner Standaert 
asked if Rule 23 in the Rules of Procedure could be read into record.  Town Clerk Angie Murphy 
read aloud the following rule:  “an affirmative vote equal to a majority of all the members of the 
Board not excused from voting on the question at issue shall be required to adopt an ordinance, to 
take any action that has the effect of an ordinance, or to make, ratify or authorize any contract on 
behalf to the Town.  In addition, no ordinance or action that has the effect of an ordinance may be 
finally adopted on the date of its introduction except by an affirmative vote of at least two-thirds 
of the actual membership of the Board, excluding vacant seats and not including the Mayor.  No 
ordinance shall be adopted unless it has been reduced to writing before a vote on its adoption is 
taken.”  Mayor Helms asked the Town Attorney to research this rule and give a ruling later in the 
meeting.   

 

 
Mayor’s Communications 

Mayor Helms stated that last week at the Closed Session, following the Agenda Meeting, Barry 
Creasman was hired as the new Interim Public Works Director.  Mayor Helms praised the entire 
Public Works Crew for their preparations prior to Hurricane Irma and their quick work removing 

Packet Page 15



Montreat Board of Commissioners 
Town Council Meeting Minutes 

September 14, 2017 
 

 

Book 16; Page 

the 17 trees from the roadway throughout the night.   
 

 
Consent Agenda Review 

The proposed Consent Agenda will include the following items: 
• August 3, 2017, Town Council Agenda Meeting Minutes 
• August 10, 2017, Town Council Public Forum Minutes 
• August 10, 2017, Town Council Meeting Minutes 

 

 
Town Administrator’s Communications 

• Mr. Carmichael was absent this evening because he is currently undergoing training in 
Chapel Hill at the School of Government.   
 

 
Administrative Reports 

Police Chief:  Reports were in written form as requested by Council.  No questions were asked of 
the Interim 
 

Police Chief.    

Public Works Director:

 

  Reports were in written form as requested by Council.  No questions were 
asked of the Public Works Director. 

Finance Officer:

 

  Reports were in written form as requested by Council.  No questions were asked 
of the Finance Officer. 

Building Inspector/Code Enforcement Officer:

 

  Mr. Carmichael stated that he is still trying to figure 
out the compilation software to prepare the monthly reports. 

Public Comments
 

  

Mayor Helms reiterated that this Public Comment period was intended for remarks pertaining to 
items listed on the meeting agenda, including staff reports and communications. 
 
There was no public comment at this time.  
 

 
Old Business 

There was no Old Business to discuss. 
 
 
 
 

Packet Page 16



Montreat Board of Commissioners 
Town Council Meeting Minutes 

September 14, 2017 
 

 

Book 16; Page 

 
New Business 

A. Zoning Official Position Review: 

 

  Mayor Pro Tem Fouche stated that she liked the option of 
sharing a Zoning Administrator position with the Town of Biltmore Forest but was unsure 
where Land of the Sky fit in the model.  Town Clerk Angie Murphy advised that utilizing Land of 
Sky would allow the Town to contract on an annual basis as well as handling the benefit 
coordination.  Commissioner Vinson stated that she felt it was very important to get a Zoning 
Administrator/Building Inspector outside of Montreat due to conflicts of interest.  
Commissioner Vinson felt that a full-time employee doing both roles would be ideal.  Mayor 
Pro Tem Fouche felt that maintaining our current situation of outsourcing inspections and 
partnering with the Town of Biltmore Forest could save the Town some money and also allow 
the Council to see the best plan of action to take in the future.    Commissioner Otto stated that 
he felt that when any business had a vacancy arise they take time to evaluate the position 
before they immediately hire another full time position.  Commissioner Otto felt that splitting 
the zoning and inspections would save roughly $20,000 and allow the Commission more time 
to think on the direction they want the position to go.  Commissioner Standaert felt that there 
has been a huge turnover in employees but the Council has not been as proactive in filling 
these positions.  She was worried about the remaining employees feeling overworked and felt 
that moving forward with a full time zoning administrator/building inspector would be in the 
best interest of the Town.  Mayor Pro Tem Fouche felt that trying the shared position for a year 
would not hurt anything.  Commissioner Kent Otto moved to direct staff to reorganize the full 
time building inspector/zoning administration position and to partner with Land of Sky Council 
of Government for Zoning Administration and an individual contractor for Building 
Permits/Inspections.  Commissioner Gilliland seconded the motion and the motion carried 4/1 
with Commissioner Standaert voted in opposition. 

 
Public Comments-Other Topics 

Mayor Helms reiterated that the Public Comment period were for remarks pertaining to public 
business items not listed on the meeting agenda, including any reports or communications from 
other community entities. 
 
Eric Nichols of 527  Suwannee Drive, reminded the Council that there are committees that utilize 
Town Employees as resources.  Mr. Nichols stated that he will miss Mr. Currie’s knowledge on the 
Board of Adjustments.    

 
Commissioner Communications 

Commissioner Gilliland thanked the Public Works Crews for all their hard work, over and above 
what was expected, during the Hurricane.   
 
Commissioner Standaert stated that our Town staff vacancies need to be bolstered so staff can 
keep an even balance between home life and work life.     

Packet Page 17



Montreat Board of Commissioners 
Town Council Meeting Minutes 

September 14, 2017 
 

 

Book 16; Page 

 
Commissioner Vinson brought some firewise brochures for distribution since it is now planting 
season.  She also had some information about the Emerald Ash Borer as well.     
 
   

 
Upcoming Meeting Dates 

Mayor Helms reviewed the following list of upcoming meeting dates and deadlines:  
 

September 19, 2017, 9:30 a.m. Montreat Tree Board: 
Town Services Building 

  
September 28, 2017, 7:00 p.m. Board of Adjustment: 

Walkup Building 
 

October 4, 2017, 9:00 a.m. Montreat Landcare: 
Allen Building 

Swannanoa Room 
 

October 5, 2017, 7:00 p.m. October Town Council Agenda Meeting: 
Walkup Building 

 
October 12, 2017, 7:00 p.m. October Town Council Meeting: 

Public Forum begins at 6:30 p.m. 
Walkup Building 

 
September 26, 2017, 2:00 – 4:00 p.m. Retirement Party for Public Works Director 

Steve Freeman: Walkup Building 
 

September 28, 2017, 10:00 – 12:00 p.m. Retirement Party for Finance Officer Stefan 
Stackhouse: Walkup Building 

 
Attorney Susan Taylor Rash referenced a General Statute that states on the date of introduction of 
an ordinance there does need to be at least a 2/3rds vote or a super-majority.  In tonight’s 
instance this did not occur so the Board will vote on this subject matter again in October.   
 

 
Closed Session 

Commissioner Vinson moved to enter into Closed Session in accordance with North Carolina 
Genera Statute 143-318.11(5) to discuss the proposed acquisition of real property indentified as 
(PIN # 0720 – 53 – 9360), located on Montreat Road, for potential Montreat Town Hall. 
 

Packet Page 18



Montreat Board of Commissioners 
Town Council Meeting Minutes 

September 14, 2017 
 

 

Book 16; Page 

After returning to Open Session Commissioner Vinson moved to request a one month extension 
from Mountain Retreat Association so the Town can contract with an engineering firm to have soil 
samples completed on the Creek Side Property. 
 

 
Public Comment 

There was no public comment at this time. 
 

 
Adjournment 

There being no further business, Commissioner Standaert moved to adjourn the Town Council 
Meeting.  Commissioner Otto seconded and the motion carried 5/0.  The meeting was adjourned 
at 8:21 p.m. 
  
 
 
   

Tim Helms, Mayor  Angela Murphy, Town Clerk 

 

Packet Page 19



Town of Montreat 
Board of Commissioners 

Special Meeting  
October 2, 2017 

Town Services Building 
 

Book 16; Page 

 
Board members present

Mayor Pro Tem Kitty Fouche 
: Mayor Tim Helms 

Commissioner Bill Gilliland 
Commissioner Kent Otto 
 

Board members absent:
    Commissioner Ann Vinson   

 Commissioner Mary Standaert 

 
Town staff present

Angie Murphy, Town Clerk 
:  Alex Carmichael, Town Administrator 

 
Approximately 0 members of the public were also present.  Mayor Helms called the meeting to 
order at 12:07 p.m., led the group in a moment of silence.   
   

 
Agenda Approval 

Commissioner Gilliland moved to adopt the agenda as presented.  Commissioner Otto seconded 
and the motion carried 3/0. 
 
Mr. Carmichael explained the items on today’s agenda.  He stated there were two engineering 
contracts which required exemption from the Council for formal bidding requirements.  Both 
engineering items relate to the Creek Side property.     

 
A. Resolution #17-10-001 

Resolution #17-10-001 exempts the Board for the geotechnical study of 1210 Montreat Road. 
Commissioner Gilliland moved to approve Resolution #17-10-001 exemption for contract 
approval of geotechnical study of 1210 Montreat Road.  Mayor Pro Tem Fouche seconded and 
the motion carried 3/0. 

 
B. Resolution #17-10-002 

Resolution #17-10-002 exempts the Board for contract approval of phase 1 geotechnical site 
evaluation of 1210 Montreat Road.  Commissioner Otto asked if this process could be done at 
a later time.  Mr. Carmichael stated that this step is required but it does not have to be 
completed at this time and the price stays the same whether it is completed now or later.  
Mayor Pro Tem Fouche advised that they could do the first study and if the soil testing came 
out satisfactory then they could move forward with the phase 1 geotechnical site evaluation.  
Commissioner Gilliland moved to approved Resolution #17-10-002 exemption for contract 
approval of phase 1 geotechnical site evaluation of 1210 Montreat Road contingent upon a 
positive geotechnical study.  Commissioner Otto seconded and the motion carried 3/0. 
 

Packet Page 20



Montreat Board of Commissioners 
Town Council Special Meeting Minutes 

October 2, 2017 
 

 

Book 16; Page 

C. Geotechnical Site Evaluation Contract 
This contract is for the soil study.  Commissioner Otto moved to approve the geotechnical site 
evaluation of 1210 Montreat Road.  Commissioner Gilliland seconded and the motion carried 
3/0. 

 
D. Phase 1 Environmental Site Assessment 

Commissioner Gilliland moved to approve the contract for phase 1 environmental site 
assessment of 1210 Montreat Road contingent upon positive geotechnical review.  
Commissioner Otto seconded and the motion carried 3/0. 
 

E. Real Estate Brokerage Services 
Mr. Carmichael stated this would give him the authority to negotiate a consulting fee and 
work thru the contract with the Broker without having to come back to Council for approval.  
The broker selected is Scott Brown out of Keller-Williams in Asheville.  Commissioner Otto 
moved to approve the delegation of contract authority to the Town Administrator for real 
estate brokerage services for analysis of 365 Arkansas Trail.  Mayor Pro Tem Fouche seconded 
and the motion carried 3/0. 
 

F. Urban and Community Forestry Grant Program 
This is the grant already received for the tree inventory but the Board has to approve any 
contract before it is signed.  This grant will be used to send employees to arborist training, pay 
for the tree inventory and other materials.  Mayor Pro Tem Fouche moved to approve the 
grant contract for the Urban and Community Forestry Grant Program.  Commissioner Gilliland 
seconded and the motion carried 3/0. 
 

 
Adjournment 

There being no further business, Commissioner Gilliland moved to adjourn the Special 
Meeting.  Commissioner Otto seconded and the motion carried 3/0.  The meeting was 
adjourned at 12:21 p.m. 

 
 

 
   

Tim Helms, Mayor  Angela Murphy, Town Clerk 

 

Packet Page 21



Town of Montreat 
Board of Commissioners 

Town Council Agenda Meeting 
October 5, 2017 
Walkup Building 

 

Book 16; Page 

 
Board members present
    Mayor Pro Tem Kitty Fouche 

: Mayor Tim Helms 

Commissioner Bill Gilliland 
Commissioner Kent Otto 
 

Board members absent:
    Commissioner Ann Vinson     

 Commissioner Mary Standaert 

 
Town staff present

Angie Murphy, Town Clerk 
:  Alex Carmichael, Town Administrator 

Mac McClintock, Police Officer 
     
Approximately 8 members of the public were also present.  Mayor Helms called the meeting to 
order at 7:02 p.m., led the group in reciting the Pledge of Allegiance, and held a moment of silence 
asking for those in attendance to remember those affected by the recent storms as well as the 
tragedy in Las Vegas.  Mayor Helms stated that the flag at the Town Services Building had been at 
half mast since Monday and was raised earlier today.   
 

 
Agenda Approval 

Town Administrator Alex Carmichael stated that there were a couple of items on the agenda 
related to the Finance Officer Position.  The UNC School of Government and the LGC have been 
assisting the Town with benchmarking and looking at best practices to move forward with the 
position but another opportunity has presented itself in the form of an Interim Finance Officer 
Position.  Mr. Carmichael would like to pull the Finance Officer Position off of “Presentations and 
Reports” and insert the appropriate Closed Session language into the current motion to discuss 
the possibility of an Interim Finance Officer to assist in the meantime.  Mayor Helms stated that he 
wanted this handled in two separate motions.  Mayor Pro Tem Fouche moved to remove the 
Finance Officer Position off of the agenda under “Presentations and Reports”.  Commissioner 
Gilliland seconded and the motion carried 3/0.  Commissioner Gilliland moved to add the following 
language to the current Closed Session motion:  “To enter into Closed Session in accordance with 
NCGS 143-318.11(6) for discussion of a personnel matter”.  Commissioner Otto seconded and the 
motion carried 3/0.  Commissioner Gilliland moved to accept the agenda as amended.  Mayor Pro 
Tem Fouche seconded and the motion carried 3/0.   
 
 

 
Presentations and Reports 

Mr. Carmichael stated that the Commission directed Staff to seek recommendations on the nature 
and sale of the Florida Terrace parcel.  Currently the lot is plotted as three different non-

Packet Page 22



Montreat Board of Commissioners 
Town Council Agenda Meeting Minutes 

October 5, 2017 
 

 

Book 16; Page 

conforming lots by the Town of Montreat zoning ordinance requirements.  Mr. Carmichael stated 
that the Commission has the option of recombining the parcel into one large lot or two 
conforming lots.  Staff came to the Board earlier this summer and recommended recombining into 
two separate conforming lots based on the potential revenue gained.  The Commission also 
instructed Staff to seek the assistance of a realtor for an analysis for the property.  Mr. Carmichael 
stated that he has met with a realtor named Scott Brown, of Keller-Williams out of Asheville, who 
is working on a market analysis of whether to sell as one or two lots and the best manner in which 
to sell the parcel.  Mr. Brown will recommend the most appropriate method to make the sell 
based on the state mandated requirements for sale of government property.   
  

 
Mayor’s Communications 

Mayor Helms stated that he no communications this evening.   
   

 
Consent Agenda Review 

The proposed Consent Agenda will include the following items: 
• September 7, 2017, Town Council Agenda Meeting Minutes 
• September 14, 2017, Town Council  Public Forum Minutes 
• September 14, 2017, Town Council Meeting Minutes 
• Proclamation #17-10-0001 Honoring Montreat College Class of 1967 

 

 
Town Administrator’s Communications 

• Mr. Carmichael will thank the Caring Neighbors for the delicious meal and birthday party they 
provided for Staff earlier this month. 

• Mr. Carmichael will provide an update on the recent Staff retirements. 
• Mr. Carmichael will provide a brief overview of the current status of the Creek Side Property. 

 

 
Administrative Reports 

The Board will hear administrative reports as written with the ability to ask questions from the 
Police Chief, Public Works Director, Finance Officer and Building Inspector/Code Administrator 
during next week’s Town Council Meeting. 
 

Public Comments
 

  

Mayor Helms reiterated that this Public Comment period was intended for remarks pertaining to 
items listed on the meeting agenda, including staff reports and communications. 
 
Mr. Eric Nichols of 527 Suwannee Dr gave a hearty “keep up the good work” from the audience. 
 

Packet Page 23



Montreat Board of Commissioners 
Town Council Agenda Meeting Minutes 

October 5, 2017 
 

 

Book 16; Page 

 
Old Business 

A.  Proposed Rezoning of Florida Terrace:

   

  Mayor Helms explained the reasoning why Florida 
Terrace was not rezoned last month upon first introduction due to a lack of a super-majority.  
Mayor Helms stated that Council waited the appropriate period of time and this time only a 
simple majority will be needed so another vote will be taken next week. 

 
New Business 

A. Appointment of Everett Culpepper to Board of Adjustment:

 

  Mr. Carmichael stated that Mr. 
Culpepper is eager to serve the Town of Montreat.  The Board of Adjustment must have five 
members present to take action and with Mr. Culpepper’s appointment the Committee will be 
back up to the appropriate number required.  Mr. Carmichael also stated that the Committee 
still has two alternate seats and two ETJ representative seats to fill if anyone is interested.  A 
more robust roster of members will allow the meetings to be held in a timely manner.   

B. Authorization for the Sale of Public Property on Florida Terrace:

 

  Mr. Carmichael stated that the 
motion for this item is pending based on the recommendation from the broker.  Mayor Pro 
Tem Fouche mentioned a list of ways the property can be sold, which was featured in an earlier 
meeting, and expressed her desire to see it again in next week’s meeting packet. 

 
Public Comments-Other Topics 

Mayor Helms reiterated that the Public Comment period were for remarks pertaining to public 
business items not listed on the meeting agenda, including any reports or communications from 
other community entities. 
 
There were no Public Comments at this time.  
 

 
Commissioner Communications 

Mayor Pro Tem Fouche mentioned that last year at this time she had an Employee Appreciation 
Luncheon and would like to do that again and is thinking about Monday, October 16th

 

.  Next week 
she will ask for volunteers for food and fellowship.   

 
Upcoming Meeting Dates 

Mayor Helms reviewed the following list of upcoming meeting dates and deadlines:  
 

October 12, 2017, 7:00 p.m. October Town Council Meeting: 
Public Forum begins at 6:30 p.m. 

Walkup Building 

Packet Page 24



Montreat Board of Commissioners 
Town Council Agenda Meeting Minutes 

October 5, 2017 
 

 

Book 16; Page 

 
October 17, 2017, 9:30 a.m. Montreat Tree Board: 

Town Services Building 
 

October 26, 2017, 7:00 p.m. Board of Adjustment: 
Walkup Building 

 
October 31, 2017 Bulk Pick-up: 

 
November 1, 2017, 9:00 a.m. Montreat Landcare: 

Allen Building 
Swannanoa Room 

 
November 2, 2017, 7:00 p.m. November Town Council Agenda Meeting: 

Moore Center 
Thompson Brown Meeting Room 

 
November 9, 2017, 7:00 p.m. November Town Council Meeting: 

Public Forum begins at 6:30 p.m. 
Walkup Building 

  
 

 
Closed Session 

There will be Closed Session at next week’s meeting. 
 

 
Adjournment 

There being no further business, Commissioner Gilliland moved to adjourn the Town Council 
Agenda Meeting.  Commissioner Otto seconded and the motion carried 3/0.  The meeting was 
adjourned at 7:17 p.m.  
 
 
   

Tim Helms, Mayor  Angela Murphy, Town Clerk 

  

Packet Page 25



 Town of Montreat 
Board of Commissioners 

Town Council Public Forum  
October 12, 2017 
Walkup Building 

  

 

Book 16; Page  

Board members present
    Mayor Pro Tem Kitty Fouche 

: Mayor Tim Helms 

    Commissioner Bill Gilliland 
Commissioner Kent Otto 
Commissioner Mary Standaert  
Commissioner Ann Vinson  
 

Board members absent:
 

 None 

Town staff present
Angie Murphy, Town Clerk 

:  Alex Carmichael, Town Administrator 

    

 
Call to Order 

Approximately 16 people were in attendance.  Mayor Helms called the meeting to order at 6:31 
p.m. and led the group in a moment of silence.   
 

 
Agenda Approval 

Commissioner Vinson moved to adopt the agenda as presented.  Mayor Pro Tem Fouche seconded 
and the motion carried 5/0. 
 

 
Public Forum 

Mrs. Lila Ray of 436 Kentucky Road wanted to know if there was a way to get a Friday sanitation 
pickup.  She suggested a drop-off time of 2:00 – 4:00 p.m. each Friday to drop the bags  at the 
Town Services Building for free of charge.  Mr. Carmichael reviewed the sanitation services that we 
currently offer.  Mr. Carmichael also stated that the current pay-as-you-throw method was 
instigated in the hopes of discouraging people from outside of Montreat from using our open 
services.  The open system incurred more charges on the taxpayer due to fees associated with 
increased sanitation waste and the costs associated with hauling the dumpsters off.  Mr. 
Carmichael stated that changing the process is possible but not without a cost.   
 
Mrs. Grace Nichols of 527 Suwannee Drive asked about the current land activity at the Creekside 
Property.  Mr.  Carmichael  stated that the Town of Montreat is under contract to purchase the 
property and we are still in the due diligence period.  ECS Southeast has been contracted to do 
some geotechnical surveying and testing. 
    
Mr. Tom Widmer of 218 Tennessee Road inquired about the status of the broken telephone pole 
on Assembly Drive.  Mr. Carmichael stated that he unfortunately did not have the answer because 

Packet Page 26



Montreat Board of Commissioners 
Public Forum Minutes 

 October 12, 2017 
 

 

Book 16; Page  

it is not a Town offered utility.  Mr. Widmer felt that it could be dangerous to the public.  Mr. 
Carmichael stated that he would do some research to see what he could find out about the broken 
pole.  
 
Mr. Wade Burns of 232 North Carolina Terrace asked if there would be a status on the Zoning 
Official at tonight’s meeting.  Mr. Carmichael stated that the Town had authorized the division of 
responsibilities of the Building Inspector and Code Enforcement Officer at last month’s regular 
Council Meeting.   Mr. Carmichael went further to say that we are in the process of negotiating a 
contract with Land of the Sky.  The costs look reasonable at this time and Mr. Carmichael has a 
meeting tomorrow with the Land of Sky staff and the Biltmore Forest Town Administrator.  The 
position would be a Planner Position hired by Land of Sky and contracted out to the Towns of 
Montreat and Biltmore Forest.  This position would be at Montreat two days a week, Biltmore 
Forest two days a week and Land of Sky the final day of the week.  Mr. Carmichael is hoping to 
have the final contract back before Council at the November Regular Meeting.  Then the next step 
in the process would be to advertise and interview for the position.  In the meantime Mr. 
Carmichael is working with a gentleman out of South Carolina for interim Zoning Administration 
Services.  There are currently some insurance issues per state law that need to be worked out.  Mr. 
Burns stated that there were homeowners who had been waiting for a Zoning Administrator to 
complete projects.  Mr. Carmichael stated that is why he is pursuing an Interim Zoning 
Administrator.       
 
Mr. Tom Frist of 98 Frist Road stated that he was having trouble with certain organizations 
recognizing his address:   specifically AT&T and Google.  Mr. Frist has also been turned down for 
credit cards due to his address not being recognized and would like to see it resolved.  
Commissioner Standaert worked on the address inconsistencies for two years.  Commissioner 
Standaert stated that the issues lie with the Board of Elections and the United States Post Office.  
In her two years of researching this she went through the Buncombe County Board of Elections, 
the North Carolina State Board of Elections and Patrick McHenry’s office.  Commissioner Standaert 
recommended calling state representatives.  Mr. Carmichael felt that it was paramount that the 
Buncombe County Emergency Services had the correct address in their mapping system and stated 
that he would follow up with this matter directly with them.  Mrs. Grace Nichols had similar issues 
with a refrigerator she ordered several years ago.  Commissioner Standaert asked Mr. Carmichael 
to check and see if people could call 911 to verify their address.   
 

 
Adjournment 

There being no further discussion, Commissioner Gilliland moved to adjourn the Public Forum 
Meeting.  Commissioner Vinson seconded and the motion carried 5/0.  The meeting was 
adjourned at 6:53 p.m. 
 
 
 

Packet Page 27



Montreat Board of Commissioners 
Public Forum Minutes 

 October 12, 2017 
 

 

Book 16; Page  

__________________________________  ______________________________________ 
  Tim Helms, Mayor     Angie Murphy, Town Clerk 
 

 
 

Packet Page 28



Town of Montreat 
Board of Commissioners 

Town Council Meeting 
October 12, 2017 
Walkup Building 

 

Book 16; Page 

 
Board members present

Mayor Pro Tem Kitty Fouche 
: Mayor Tim Helms 

Commissioner Bill Gilliland 
Commissioner Kent Otto 
Commissioner Mary Standaert 
Commissioner Ann Vinson 
 

Board members absent:
     

 None 

 
Town staff present

David Arrant, Chief of Police 
:  Alex Carmichael, Town Administrator 

Angie Murphy, Town Clerk 
    Susan Taylor Rash, Town Attorney 
 
Approximately 25 members of the public were also present.  Mayor Helms called the meeting to 
order at 7:00 p.m., led the group in reciting the Pledge of Allegiance, and held a moment of 
silence.   

 
Agenda Approval 

Commissioner Standaert asked for the minutes of September 7th and 14th

 

 to be pulled from the 
Consent Agenda and handled individually later in the meeting.  Commissioner Vinson moved to 
adopt the agenda as amended.  Mayor Pro Tem Fouche seconded and the motion carried 5/0. 

 

Broker Recommendations for the Nature and Sale of Public Property on Florida 
Terrace, Parcel Number 0720-16-4118-00000 

Mr. Carmichael stated that the Florida Terrace property was platted as 3 nonconforming lots and 
the Town has the option, prior to sale, of recombining them into conforming lots:  either one large 
lot or 2 conforming lots.  At the May Town Council meeting the Board expressed their desire to 
recombine into 2 conforming lots and instructed Staff to seek the assistance of a real estate broker 
to acquire a market analysis.  Mr. Carmichael then introduced Mr. Scott Browne, of Keller Williams 
Realty in Asheville, to provide his recommendations for the Florida Terrace property. 
 
Mr. Browne did an analysis of the market which includes everything for sale and everything that 
has sold in the Town of Montreat.  There are 14 residential land parcels for sale in the Town of 
Montreat ranging from $49,000 to $395,000.  If you exclude the high and the low prices, the 
average for sale list price for residential lots in the Town is $101,500.  Location, utility availability, 
view and ease of construction all affect the individual property values.  In the past 12 months 
there have been two recorded closed lot sales in the Town.  The average closed sale price is 

Packet Page 29



Montreat Board of Commissioners 
Town Council Meeting Minutes 

October 12, 2017 
 

 

Book 16; Page 

$307,000 per acre.  In Mr. Browne’s opinion the 3 parcels would be best marketed as 2 separate 
single residence family parcels.  The neighborhood is primarily residential so it makes sense that 
single residence family parcels would be the most marketable.  Mr. Browne recommended having 
the property resurveyed and re-platted into 2 separate parcels of equal size.  From a marketing 
position the wider frontage is more desirable to a potential buyer as long as it conforms to the 
current zoning regulations so Mr. Browne recommends a horizontal recombination.  Mr. Browne 
suggested listing the properties for $110,000 each as supported by marketable data.   
 
Mayor Pro Tem Fouche stated that there was a lot of money spent on the property after purchase 
and wondered if any of that could be passed onto the buyer.  Mr. Browne stated that the tests 
that were performed were disclosable but would not affect the value.  It would, however, affect 
marketability and salability. Commissioner Standaert asked if building on Florida Terrace adjacent 
to more institutional properties would affect the pricing.   Mr. Browne stated that both properties 
are extremely buildable and are extremely residential and unique in character so pricing would not 
be affected.  Commissioner Standaert asked if the method of sale would be addressed and Mr. 
Carmichael stated that he would make recommendations later in the meeting.  Mayor Pro Tem 
Fouche stated that she was disappointed in the price that Mr. Browne suggested based on how 
much money was spent purchasing the property and the testing that occurred.  Mr. Browne stated 
that his recommendation was based on marketable historical data.  Commissioner Standaert 
stated that the property was purchased at below the assessed value and it had been on the 
market for a year and a half prior to when the Town of Montreat made their purchase.   Mr. 
Carmichael stated that the Constitution states that local governments in North Carolina cannot 
provide emoluments to individuals.  If the property were to be sold under market value it would 
be considered providing favorable opportunities to individuals.   Therefore, market value must be 
determined and that must be the benchmark to start the process.    Mr. Carmichael stated that 
researching previously received reports was necessary to make sure they would not be proprietary 
in nature.            

 

 
Mayor’s Communications 

Mayor Helms stated that the American Flag at the Town Services Building was lowered for several 
days in honor of the victims in the Las Vegas tragedy.   
 

 
Consent Agenda Review 

The proposed Consent Agenda will include the following item: 
• Proclamation #17-10-0001 Honoring Montreat College Class of 1967 
 

 
Town Administrator’s Communications 

• Mr.  Carmichael asked Police Chief Dave Arrant to speak to an inner-agency event that 
occurred during the month.  Chief Arrant stated that an individual was lost on the trails the 

Packet Page 30



Montreat Board of Commissioners 
Town Council Meeting Minutes 

October 12, 2017 
 

 

Book 16; Page 

week prior to the meeting and he wanted to thank and acknowledge all the personnel 
involved in the search and rescue.  Chief Arrant expressed his thanks to the Black Mountain 
Police and Fire Department, the Skyland Fire Department which included a canine, the 
Garren Creek Fire Department, Fairview Fire Department, Broad River Fire Department and 
members of West Buncombe Fire Department.  Jason Nanz and Tanner Pickett, both of the 
MRA, were instrumental in the search as well.  Five canine units participated in the 
recovery.  Chief Arrant was happy to report that the individual was found relatively safe 
and sound.  Mr. Carmichael stated this operation was handled very well administratively 
and tactically.   

• Mr. Carmichael stated that several homeowners had experienced extremely high water 
bills for the month of October and most of that was due to radio receiver read issues.  We 
utilize a mobile read application and certain areas are showing extremely high reads while 
other areas are reading normally.  We are working with the vendor and have a temporary 
loaner unit in the truck until the original reader can be fixed. 

• Mr. Carmichael stated that we are still under contract with the MRA for the Creekside 
Property and we are completing soil testing this week.   

• Mr. Carmichael thanked the Caring Neighbors for the delicious birthday lunch they 
prepared for staff.   

• Mr. Carmichael announced that we had two retirements this month:  Steve Stackhouse and 
Steve Freeman.  The Town threw two successful retirement parties in the Walkup Building 
to celebrate their time with the Town of Montreat. 

• Mr. Carmichael also thanked Mayor Pro Tem Fouche for the upcoming employee 
appreciation luncheon at her home.   
 

 
Administrative Reports 

Police Chief:

 

  Reports were in written form as requested by Council.  No questions were asked of 
the Police Chief.    

Public Works Director:

 

  Reports were in written form as requested by Council.  No questions were 
asked of the Interim Public Works Director. 

Commissioner Vinson stated that she noticed that her neighborhood had leaves blown into huge 
piles on the side of the road and she inquired whether the Town was using a vacuum for leaf 
collection.  Mr. Carmichael stated that for curbside pickup the leaves must be in brown paper 
compostable bags as the Town does not have a vacuum truck.   
 
Finance Officer:

 

  Reports were in written form as requested by Council.  No questions were asked 
of the Town Administrator. 

Building Inspector/Code Enforcement Officer:  Mr. Carmichael stated that he is still trying to figure 
out the compilation software to prepare the monthly reports. 

Packet Page 31



Montreat Board of Commissioners 
Town Council Meeting Minutes 

October 12, 2017 
 

 

Book 16; Page 

 
Public Comments

 
  

Mayor Helms reiterated that this Public Comment period was intended for remarks pertaining to 
items listed on the meeting agenda, including staff reports and communications. 
 
Mrs. Claire Frist of 98 Frist Road asked if we do the Montreat College Proclamations every year or 
was 1967 a special year.  Mrs. Frist also asked if search and rescue operations impacted taxpayers 
at all.  Mayor Helms advised that we typically do a Proclamation for every 50th

 

 anniversary 
graduating class of Montreat College.  Chief Arrant stated that police, fire, ems services are indeed 
taxpayer funded services.  Chief Arrant said a colleague of his estimated this 18-20 hour operation 
to cost $10,000-20,000.  Commissioner Gilliland asked if the Town of Montreat would be billed this 
expense.  Chief Arrant stated that no extra overtime was utilized and there would be no amount 
billed to the Town.   

 
Old Business 

A.  Proposed Rezoning of Florida Terrace: 

 

  Mr. Carmichael reviewed the events that occurred at 
last month’s Town Council meeting with regards to the proposed rezoning of Florida Terrace.  
On September 13th the Commission held a public hearing for the Proposed Rezoning of 
Eastern Side of Florida Terrace from Institutional/Residential (I/R) to Residential Low Density 
(R1) Followed by Possible Action. Following the public hearing a motion was made to rezone 
the Eastern Side of Florida Terrace from Institutional/Residential (I/R) to Residential Low 
Density (R1) excluding the property known as Sylvan Heights PIN # 0720-15-4916. The 
Commission voted 3/2 in favor of rezoning, however, the vote did not meet the threshold 
required to pass the motion.  Rule 23 of the Board of Commissioners’ Rules of Procedure 
states the following: “An affirmative vote equal to a majority of all the members of the Board 
not excused from voting on the question at issue shall be required to adopt an ordinance, to 
take any action that has the effect of an ordinance, or to make, ratify or authorize any 
contract on behalf to the Town. In addition, no ordinance or action that has the effect of an 
ordinance may be finally adopted on the date of its introduction except by an affirmative vote 
of at least two-thirds of the actual membership of the Board, excluding vacant seats and not 
including the Mayor. No ordinance shall be adopted unless it has been reduced to writing 
before a vote on its adoption is taken.” In the opinion of the Town Attorney, the September 
13th meeting constituted the “date of introduction,” which requires a two-thirds favorable 
vote to pass. The motion thus failed.   At this meeting of October 12th, 2017 a simple majority 
is required to pass the motion to rezone the Eastern Side of Florida Terrace from 
Institutional/Residential (I/R) to Residential Low Density (R1). 

Commissioner Gilliland moved to rezone the Eastern Side of Florida Terrace from 
Institutional/Residential (I/R) to Residential Low Density (R1) excluding the property known as 
Sylvan Heights PIN # 0720-15-4916.  Commissioner Kent Otto seconded the motion.  

Packet Page 32



Montreat Board of Commissioners 
Town Council Meeting Minutes 

October 12, 2017 
 

 

Book 16; Page 

Commissioner Standaert stated that she would be voting in opposition of this motion and she 
proceeded to state her reasoning as such.  Commissioner Standaert said the main job of 
public officials is to respond to the present and prepare for the future.  Commissioner 
Standaert felt that the Institutional/Residential (I/R) designation was important since we claim 
to support our institutions.  This option will be taken off the table for both Montreat College 
and the MRA.  Commissioner Standaert stated that even though the realtor said the property 
in question was residential in nature most of the homes around the tract of land are second 
homes.  It concerned Commissioner Standaert that a small group of people, basically one 
extended family, are asking for this zoning change.  She felt that this was setting a dangerous 
precedent  that a small group of people can petition and make changes and it would be more 
difficult to deny future requests.  Commissioner Standaert also stated that changing the 
zoning would not preclude any potential traffic issues.   
 
Commissioner Otto appreciated his talks with both MRA and Montreat College who both 
stated that they had no immediate plans to utilize the property.  Commissioner Otto also 
spent time with the neighbors who signed the petition who greatly desired the zoning change.  
Commissioner Otto also pointed out that in the public comment periods and the public 
hearing there was very little outcry from anyone opposed to the rezoning.  Commissioner 
Otto stated that he felt that the potential tax increase would be a benefit to the community.   
 
Commissioner Standaert stated that the tax increase is a legitimate and accurate position to 
rezone but there is nothing that prevents earning residential tax dollars with the current 
zoning requirements.  Commissioner Standaert also pointed out that two single family 
residential homes valued at $400,000 each would net around $3,000-$3,500 in tax revenue 
per year against the flexibility of any institutional buildings.  Mayor Helms called for a vote 
and the motion passed 3/2 with Commissioner Vinson and Standaert voting against the 
proposed rezoning of Florida Terrace. 

 

 
New Business 

A. Appointment of Everett Culpepper to Board of Adjustment: 

 

  Commissioner Bill Gilliland moved 
to appoint Everett Culpepper to the Board of Adjustment for a term of two years to expire on 
January 31, 2019.  Commissioner Ann Vinson seconded and the motion carried 5/0. 

B. Authorization for the Sale of Public Property on Florida Terrace:  Mr. Carmichael briefly 
reviewed the sealed bid process and the public auction process.  These requirements are in 
place to produce transparency in government.  Staff is recommending a sealed bid process.  
The main consideration is the administrative burden and the likelihood of gathering additional 
bids in an efficient way and the process of an upset bid.  The process would include advertising 
the property with a description, advertising contact information which would be Town Staff 
and advertising the date in which we would need to open all sealed bids at the same time in a 
public meeting.  Under this process we would be required to award the bid to the highest bid.  

Packet Page 33



Montreat Board of Commissioners 
Town Council Meeting Minutes 

October 12, 2017 
 

 

Book 16; Page 

We would then advertise the highest bid to see if we could get an upset bid.  We would 
continue this cycle for up to 10 days.  In order to recombine the parcels we would have to have 
a new survey filed at the Register of Deeds.  It came to consensus to do a horizontal split as 
long as it conforms to current Zoning Regulations.  Commissioner Gilliland moved to conduct a 
survey and record the subdivision of the property into two equal parcels and prepare for a 
sealed bid method as authorized by G.S. 160A-268.  Commissioner Vinson seconded.  
Commissioner Standaert moved to amend the motion to make the two equal parcels 
approximate in size.  Commissioner Gilliland withdrew the original motion and made the 
following motion:  to conduct a survey and record the subdivision of property into two 
approximately equal parcels and prepare for sealed bid method as authorized by G.S. 160A-
268.  Commissioner Standaert seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5/0.   

 
C.  Minutes from September 2017:  Commissioner Standaert moved to authorize the Town Clerk 

to make the previously discussed amendments to the September 7th and September 14th

 

 Public 
Forum and Town Council minutes.  Commissioner Vinson seconded and the motion carried 5/0. 

 
Public Comments-Other Topics 

Mayor Helms reiterated that the Public Comment period were for remarks pertaining to public 
business items not listed on the meeting agenda, including any reports or communications from 
other community entities. 
 
Mrs. Martha Campbell of 149 Maryland Place had a certificate to present to Mayor Helms and 
Environmental Commissioner Ann Vinson.  The National Wildlife Federation recognized the Town 
of Montreat for the 12th

 

 year as an active Community Wildlife Habitat.  There are now 90 certified 
communities but Montreat is really a leader in this as we were one of the first to be certified.   

 
Commissioner Communications 

Mayor Pro Tem Fouche stated that she was hosting an Employee Appreciation Luncheon on 
Monday, October 16th

   

 at her residence and she was looking for volunteers to bring food and help 
out.   

 
Upcoming Meeting Dates 

Mayor Helms reviewed the following list of upcoming meeting dates and deadlines:  
 

October 24, 2017, 7:00 p.m. Montreat Tree Board: 
Town Services Building 

  
October 26, 2017, 7:00 p.m. Board of Adjustment: 

Moore Center  

Packet Page 34



Montreat Board of Commissioners 
Town Council Meeting Minutes 

October 12, 2017 
 

 

Book 16; Page 

Thompson Brown Meeting Room 
 

October 31, 2017 Bulk Pick-Up: 
 

November 1, 2017, 9:00 a.m. Montreat Landcare: 
Allen Building 

Swannanoa Room 
 

November 2, 2017, 7:00 p.m. November Town Council Agenda Meeting: 
Moore Center 

Thompson Brown Meeting Room 
 

November 9, 2017, 7:00 p.m. November Town Council Meeting: 
Public Forum begins at 6:30 p.m. 

Walkup Building 
 

 

 
Closed Session 

Commissioner Vinson moved to enter into Closed Session in accordance with North Carolina 
Genera Statute 143-318.11(5) to discuss the proposed acquisition of real property indentified as 
(PIN # 0720 – 53 – 9360), located on Montreat Road, for potential Montreat Town Hall and 
General Statute 143-318-11(6) for discussion of a personnel matter and approval of 2016 Closed 
Session Minutes.  Mayor Pro Tem Fouche seconded and the motion carried 5/0.  
 
After returning to Open Session Commissioner Gilliland moved to authorize the Mayor and Town 
Clerk to sign easement documents as described in the contract for purchase of 1210 Montreat 
Road and authorize the Mayor to sign the settlement statement to execute the contract.  Mayor 
Pro Tem Fouche seconded.  The motion carried 5/0.  Commission Gilliland moved to authorize the 
letter of offer to Erin Marie Wheeler for part-time interim finance officer at $25.00 an hour for 24-
29 hours per week.  Commissioner Vinson seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5/0.   
  

 
Adjournment 

There being no further business, Commissioner Vinson moved to adjourn the Town Council 
Meeting.  Commissioner Gilliland seconded and the motion carried 5/0.  The meeting was 
adjourned at 9:26 p.m. 
  
 
 
   

Tim Helms, Mayor  Angela Murphy, Town Clerk 

Packet Page 35



Montreat Board of Commissioners 
Town Council Meeting Minutes 

October 12, 2017 
 

 

Book 16; Page 

Dissent opinion to be added to the minutes of the October 12, 2017 Town Council Meeting. 
 
 
I disagree with the decision made by council in open session to unconditionally authorize Mayor 
Helms to move forward with the finalization of the Creekside Property contract prior to receiving 
the final written report of the soil testing. There was no need to give this unrestricted 
authorization prior to council receiving and reviewing the content of the full and final written 
report as there was no time urgency in effect. Two more one month extensions are still available 
for completing due diligence if needed. 
 
Mary L, Standaert 
October 18, 2017 
 
As allowed in the rules of procedure I wish to add this dissent opinion to the October 12, 217 
minutes. 
It is less than 100 words and was submitted within the required 7 days. 
Please acknowledge receipt of this dissent opinion. 
Mary Standaert 
 

Packet Page 36



 
 MONTHLY POLICE STATISTICS REPORT 

October 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 

Mileage 2565 3329 3415 2728 2826 
Dispatched Calls 102 95 125 94 105 

Officer-Initiated Calls 425 294 338 206 239 
Fire/EMS Assistance Calls 11 F 6F 3E 9F 4E 8F 2E 2F 2E 

Motorist/Other Assistance Calls 80 49 69 42 57 
Traffic Stops 18 32 22 28 41 

Parking Issues 4 11 5 4 10 
Burglar/Fire Alarm Responses 5F 2B 6B 2F 1B 3F 5B 4F 2B 1F 
Residential/Building Checks 227 265 250 253 125 

Ordinance violations 7 10 12 12 15 
LE Agency Assistance Calls 24 6 16 14 21 

Animal Calls 3 2 5 4 7 
Larcenies 3 0 0 0 0 
B&E Calls 1 0 1 0 0 

Suspicious Person/Vehicle Investigations 13V 4P 35V 6P 13V 12P 19V 13P 8V 4P 
Disturbance Calls 22 5 2 7 3 

Accident Responses 0 1 0 0 1 
Auxiliary Hours Worked 32R 72T 32R 60T 32R 48T 32R 80T 32R 60O 

Truck turns at gate 2 1 1 3 6 
 

• Town service: 373 
• MRA service: 155 
• College service: 20 
 
The month of October has been somewhat eventful for the department.  The most significant event 
started on the evening of the 5th

 

.  An individual was the subject of a search in the area of Lookout 
Trail.  Throughout the next twenty-eight hours; MPD in conjunction with elements from multiple 
agencies, attempted to locate and aid this individual.  In the end, it was a successful operation.  The 
department would like to recognize the following agencies for their much appreciated efforts: 

Black Mountain Fire Department 
Black Mountain Police Department 
Skyland Fire Department (K9 Handler) 
Garren Creek Fire Department 
Fairview Fire Department 
Broad River Fire Department (3 K9 Handlers) 
West Buncombe Fire Department 
 
In addition to these agencies, we would like to acknowledge some individuals.  Jason Nanz and 
Tanner Pickett, of the MRA, were instrumental in their considerable knowledge of the area and 
terrain.   They were some of the first personnel in the woods after sunrise.   Also, Kerry Williams, of 
Williams K9 LLC.  Mr. Williams is a specialized canine trainer in Black Mountain.  He, and his 

Packet Page 37



German Shepherd, Diesel; responded in very short order after being contacted.  Everyone involved 
proved invaluable, and we extend heartfelt gratitude. 
 
On a more pedestrian level, certain areas in town have been experiencing higher than usual levels of 
parking congestion.  The department, along with administration and Public Works; have been in 
conversations with the MRA and Montreat College in order to address and generate solutions. 
 
Also during the course of the month, we saw activity not often visited on this community.  A subject 
was confronted and arrested on felony charges after breaking into a vehicle, and subsequent larceny. 
 
And lastly, during a particularly heavy and sustained rainfall; MPD officers assisted Public Works in 
seeking potential flooding issues effecting roadways. 
 
Notes:  
 

• MPD would like to notify residents that 10/16/2016 was the start of Bear hunting season. 
• MPD would like to thank all citizens for their support.  We have two holiday seasons 

approaching, let work together to keep the community safe.  Please be vigilant in notifying 
the Police Department of any suspicious activity. 

 
 

Packet Page 38



November 

Town Meeting 

 

Sanitation:  Brush and leave pickup still continues   

                   Brush and leaf pickup will be postponed on  

                   November 22 to November 29 due to the  

                   Thanksgiving holidays. 

 

 

Streets: The crew has been cleaning up storm debris and 
cleaning storm drains from the storm we had on Monday the 
23 which we had 5 inches of rain in a short period of time. 
During which we received road shoulder damage to 
Mecklenburg and Louisiana Rd.  Repair to the roads are 
already under way. 

Patching and curb repair have ended for the season due to the 
weather and the asphalt plants slowing down production. 

Road shoulder repair has begun around town please be aware 
of the crew and machinery in the roadways . 

 

Water: We had one water leak this month 

                3in line in a well  

Packet Page 39



             

                 

            

              

                                                                           Thank you          

Packet Page 40



Packet Page 41



Packet Page 42



Packet Page 43



Packet Page 44



Packet Page 45



Packet Page 46



Packet Page 47



Packet Page 48



Packet Page 49



TOWN OF MONTREAT BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 

Meeting Date:  October 12, 2017 
 
 
SUBJECT:
 

   Authority for Electronic Bidding Advertisements 

 
AGENDA INFORMATION: 

Agenda Location: New Business 
Item Number: E 
Department:  Administration 
Contact:  Alex Carmichael  
Presenter:  Alex Carmichael 
 
BRIEF SUMMARY:

 

  G.S. 143-129 requires counties and cities to advertise 
opportunities to bid on contracts for construction or repair, for the purchase of apparatus, 
supplies, materials, and equipment, within the formal bid thresholds. The advertisement 
must list the date, time, and location of the bid opening, identify where specifications 
may be obtained, and contain a statement that the board reserves the right to reject any or 
all bids. For construction projects, the advertisement may also contain information about 
contractor licensing requirements that apply to the project. 

The statutes requires the advertisement to be published in a newspaper of general 
circulation within the given county or city, unless the governing board approves the use 
of electronic advertising for bidding opportunities instead of published notice. The board 
may authorize electronic advertisement for bids for particular contracts of in general.1

 
 

Legal advertisements in the Black Mountain News can cost in excess of $100 per 
advertisements.  
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION AND REQUESTED ACTIONS:

 

  Move to approve 
electronic notice of bidding opportunities as authorized by G.S. 143-129 

 
FUNDING SOURCE:

  

  The advertisement budget was adopted through the FY 17/18 
Budget Ordinance adopted in June. Though sufficient funds for the advertisement of 
bidding opportunities are available, electronic bidding offers cost savings in excess of 
$100 per advertisement.   

ATTACHMENTS: 
G.S. 143-129 excerpt  

   

 

                                                 
1 Source:  Houston, N. In  Bluestein (Ed.) County and Municipal Government in North Carolina, Second 
edition 2014. 

Packet Page 50



ADMINISTRATOR’S COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:   

Packet Page 51



Packet Page 52


	DRAFT_11022017_BOC_Agenda2
	Rules of Procedure Memo 10-24-2017
	DRAFT_09072017_BOC_Agenda_Meeting_Minutes
	UBoard members presentU: Mayor Tim Helms
	Mayor Pro Tem Kitty Fouche
	UAgenda Approval
	Commissioner Vinson moved to adopt the agenda as presented.  Commissioner Gilliland seconded.  Mayor Pro Tem Fouche moved to defer agenda item “A”,  Uwhich is to add the word “welcome” or “welcoming” to the Mission Statement,U under new business to th...
	UPublic Hearing:  Proposed Rezoning of Eastern Side of Florida Terrace From Institutional/Residential (I/R) to Residential Low Density (R1) Followed by Possible Action
	Mr. Carmichael stated that Commissioner Standaert had asked for some additional documents related to the public notice requirements.  Public notices were publicly displayed in the Town Services Building and the United States Postal Office.  Notices we...
	UMayor’s Communications
	Mayor Helms stated that he wanted Mr. Carmichael to bring everyone up-to-date with the preparations the Town Employees are making for Hurricane Irma.   Mr. Carmichael stated that the Public Work Crews had spent the day preparing culverts and stormwate...
	UConsent Agenda Review
	UTown Administrator’s Communications
	UAdministrative Reports
	The Board will hear administrative reports as written with the ability to ask questions from the Police Chief, Public Works Director, Finance Officer and Building Inspector/Code Administrator during next week’s Town Council Meeting.
	UPublic CommentsU
	Mayor Helms reiterated that this Public Comment period was intended for remarks pertaining to items listed on the meeting agenda, including staff reports and communications.
	Mr. Wade Burns of 232 North Carolina Terrace mentioned the detailed series of options for the Building Inspector/Zoning Administrator that Mr. Carmichael had outlined in the evening’s packet.  Mr. Burns encouraged Council to review the ordinances alon...
	UOld Business
	There was no Old Business to discuss.
	UNew Business
	UUpcoming Meeting Dates
	Mayor Helms reviewed the following list of upcoming meeting dates and deadlines:
	UClosed Session
	Commissioner Vinson moved to enter in Closed Session in accordance with North Carolina General Statute 143-318.11(6) for discussion of a personnel matter.  Commissioner Gilliland seconded and the motion carried 5/0.
	Upon a motion by Commissioner Gilliland and a second by Commissioner Vinson with the motion carrying 5/0, the Board returned to Open Session.  Commissioner Gilliland moved to appoint Barry Creasman to the position of Interim Public Works Director effe...
	There will be another closed session at next week’s meeting.
	UAdjournment

	DRAFT_09142017_BOC_Agenda_PublicForum_Meeting_Minutes
	UBoard members presentU: Mayor Tim Helms
	Mayor Pro Tem Kitty Fouche
	Commissioner Bill Gilliland
	Commissioner Kent Otto
	Commissioner Mary Standaert (arrived at 6:37 p.m.)

	DRAFT_09142017_BOC_Meeting_Minutes
	UBoard members presentU: Mayor Tim Helms
	UAgenda Approval
	Commissioner Gilliland moved to adopt the agenda as presented.  Commissioner Vinson seconded and the motion carried 5/0.
	UPublic Hearing:  Proposed Rezoning of Eastern Side of Florida Terrace From Institutional/Residential (I/R) to Residential Low Density (R1) Followed by Possible Action
	UMayor’s Communications
	Mayor Helms stated that last week at the Closed Session, following the Agenda Meeting, Barry Creasman was hired as the new Interim Public Works Director.  Mayor Helms praised the entire Public Works Crew for their preparations prior to Hurricane Irma ...
	UConsent Agenda Review
	UTown Administrator’s Communications
	UAdministrative Reports
	UPolice Chief:U  Reports were in written form as requested by Council.  No questions were asked of the SInterim SPolice Chief.
	UPublic Works Director:U  Reports were in written form as requested by Council.  No questions were asked of the Public Works Director.
	UFinance Officer:U  Reports were in written form as requested by Council.  No questions were asked of the Finance Officer.
	UBuilding Inspector/Code Enforcement Officer:U  Mr. Carmichael stated that he is still trying to figure out the compilation software to prepare the monthly reports.
	UPublic CommentsU
	Mayor Helms reiterated that this Public Comment period was intended for remarks pertaining to items listed on the meeting agenda, including staff reports and communications.
	There was no public comment at this time.
	UOld Business
	There was no Old Business to discuss.
	UNew Business
	UUpcoming Meeting Dates
	Mayor Helms reviewed the following list of upcoming meeting dates and deadlines:
	Attorney Susan Taylor Rash referenced a General Statute that states on the date of introduction of an ordinance there does need to be at least a 2/3rds vote or a super-majority.  In tonight’s instance this did not occur so the Board will vote on this ...
	UClosed Session
	Commissioner Vinson moved to enter into Closed Session in accordance with North Carolina Genera Statute 143-318.11(5) to discuss the proposed acquisition of real property indentified as (PIN # 0720 – 53 – 9360), located on Montreat Road, for potential...
	After returning to Open Session Commissioner Vinson moved to request a one month extension from Mountain Retreat Association so the Town can contract with an engineering firm to have soil samples completed on the Creek Side Property.
	UPublic Comment
	There was no public comment at this time.
	UAdjournment

	DRAFT_10022017_BOC_Special_Meeting_
	UBoard members presentU: Mayor Tim Helms
	UAgenda Approval
	Commissioner Gilliland moved to adopt the agenda as presented.  Commissioner Otto seconded and the motion carried 3/0.
	Mr. Carmichael explained the items on today’s agenda.  He stated there were two engineering contracts which required exemption from the Council for formal bidding requirements.  Both engineering items relate to the Creek Side property.
	A. Resolution #17-10-001
	Resolution #17-10-001 exempts the Board for the geotechnical study of 1210 Montreat Road.
	Commissioner Gilliland moved to approve Resolution #17-10-001 exemption for contract approval of geotechnical study of 1210 Montreat Road.  Mayor Pro Tem Fouche seconded and the motion carried 3/0.
	B. Resolution #17-10-002
	Resolution #17-10-002 exempts the Board for contract approval of phase 1 geotechnical site evaluation of 1210 Montreat Road.  Commissioner Otto asked if this process could be done at a later time.  Mr. Carmichael stated that this step is required but ...
	C. Geotechnical Site Evaluation Contract
	This contract is for the soil study.  Commissioner Otto moved to approve the geotechnical site evaluation of 1210 Montreat Road.  Commissioner Gilliland seconded and the motion carried 3/0.
	D. Phase 1 Environmental Site Assessment
	Commissioner Gilliland moved to approve the contract for phase 1 environmental site assessment of 1210 Montreat Road contingent upon positive geotechnical review.  Commissioner Otto seconded and the motion carried 3/0.
	E. Real Estate Brokerage Services
	Mr. Carmichael stated this would give him the authority to negotiate a consulting fee and work thru the contract with the Broker without having to come back to Council for approval.  The broker selected is Scott Brown out of Keller-Williams in Ashevil...
	F. Urban and Community Forestry Grant Program
	This is the grant already received for the tree inventory but the Board has to approve any contract before it is signed.  This grant will be used to send employees to arborist training, pay for the tree inventory and other materials.  Mayor Pro Tem Fo...
	UAdjournment
	There being no further business, Commissioner Gilliland moved to adjourn the Special Meeting.  Commissioner Otto seconded and the motion carried 3/0.  The meeting was adjourned at 12:21 p.m.

	DRAFT_10052017_BOC_Agenda_Meeting_Minutes
	UBoard members presentU: Mayor Tim Helms
	Mayor Pro Tem Kitty Fouche
	UAgenda Approval
	Town Administrator Alex Carmichael stated that there were a couple of items on the agenda related to the Finance Officer Position.  The UNC School of Government and the LGC have been assisting the Town with benchmarking and looking at best practices t...
	UPresentations and Reports
	Mr. Carmichael stated that the Commission directed Staff to seek recommendations on the nature and sale of the Florida Terrace parcel.  Currently the lot is plotted as three different non-conforming lots by the Town of Montreat zoning ordinance requir...
	UMayor’s Communications
	Mayor Helms stated that he no communications this evening.
	UConsent Agenda Review
	UTown Administrator’s Communications
	UAdministrative Reports
	The Board will hear administrative reports as written with the ability to ask questions from the Police Chief, Public Works Director, Finance Officer and Building Inspector/Code Administrator during next week’s Town Council Meeting.
	UPublic CommentsU
	Mayor Helms reiterated that this Public Comment period was intended for remarks pertaining to items listed on the meeting agenda, including staff reports and communications.
	Mr. Eric Nichols of 527 Suwannee Dr gave a hearty “keep up the good work” from the audience.
	UOld Business
	A.  UProposed Rezoning of Florida Terrace:U  Mayor Helms explained the reasoning why Florida Terrace was not rezoned last month upon first introduction due to a lack of a super-majority.  Mayor Helms stated that Council waited the appropriate period o...
	UNew Business
	UUpcoming Meeting Dates
	Mayor Helms reviewed the following list of upcoming meeting dates and deadlines:
	UClosed Session
	There will be Closed Session at next week’s meeting.
	UAdjournment

	DRAFT_10122017_BOC_Agenda_PublicForum_Meeting_Minutes
	UBoard members presentU: Mayor Tim Helms
	Mayor Pro Tem Kitty Fouche
	Commissioner Bill Gilliland
	Commissioner Kent Otto
	Commissioner Mary Standaert

	DRAFT_10122017_BOC_Meeting_Minutes
	UBoard members presentU: Mayor Tim Helms
	UAgenda Approval
	Commissioner Standaert asked for the minutes of September 7PthP and 14PthP to be pulled from the Consent Agenda and handled individually later in the meeting.  Commissioner Vinson moved to adopt the agenda as amended.  Mayor Pro Tem Fouche seconded an...
	UBroker Recommendations for the Nature and Sale of Public Property on Florida Terrace, Parcel Number 0720-16-4118-00000
	UMayor’s Communications
	Mayor Helms stated that the American Flag at the Town Services Building was lowered for several days in honor of the victims in the Las Vegas tragedy.
	UConsent Agenda Review
	UTown Administrator’s Communications
	UAdministrative Reports
	UPolice Chief:U  Reports were in written form as requested by Council.  No questions were asked of the Police Chief.
	UPublic Works Director:U  Reports were in written form as requested by Council.  No questions were asked of the Interim Public Works Director.
	Commissioner Vinson stated that she noticed that her neighborhood had leaves blown into huge piles on the side of the road and she inquired whether the Town was using a vacuum for leaf collection.  Mr. Carmichael stated that for curbside pickup the le...
	UFinance Officer:U  Reports were in written form as requested by Council.  No questions were asked of the Town Administrator.
	UBuilding Inspector/Code Enforcement Officer:U  Mr. Carmichael stated that he is still trying to figure out the compilation software to prepare the monthly reports.
	UPublic CommentsU
	Mayor Helms reiterated that this Public Comment period was intended for remarks pertaining to items listed on the meeting agenda, including staff reports and communications.
	Mrs. Claire Frist of 98 Frist Road asked if we do the Montreat College Proclamations every year or was 1967 a special year.  Mrs. Frist also asked if search and rescue operations impacted taxpayers at all.  Mayor Helms advised that we typically do a P...
	UOld Business
	A.  UProposed Rezoning of Florida Terrace: U  Mr. Carmichael reviewed the events that occurred at last month’s Town Council meeting with regards to the proposed rezoning of Florida Terrace.  On September 13th the Commission held a public hearing for t...
	Commissioner Gilliland moved to rezone the Eastern Side of Florida Terrace from Institutional/Residential (I/R) to Residential Low Density (R1) excluding the property known as Sylvan Heights PIN # 0720-15-4916.  Commissioner Kent Otto seconded the mot...
	UNew Business
	UUpcoming Meeting Dates
	Mayor Helms reviewed the following list of upcoming meeting dates and deadlines:
	UClosed Session
	Commissioner Vinson moved to enter into Closed Session in accordance with North Carolina Genera Statute 143-318.11(5) to discuss the proposed acquisition of real property indentified as (PIN # 0720 – 53 – 9360), located on Montreat Road, for potential...
	After returning to Open Session Commissioner Gilliland moved to authorize the Mayor and Town Clerk to sign easement documents as described in the contract for purchase of 1210 Montreat Road and authorize the Mayor to sign the settlement statement to e...
	UAdjournment

	Oct 2017 MPD Status Report
	November staff report
	RegistrationCardEmail
	LandofSky
	LiquidEngineering
	Request - for Electronic Bidding Notice
	USUBJECT:U   Authority for Electronic Bidding Advertisements
	UAGENDA INFORMATION:
	Contact:  Alex Carmichael

	LettingofPublicContracts



